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RANCHI EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED
NOTICE OF TENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

To
The Members of
Ranchi Expressways Limited.

NOTICE is hereby given that the TENTH (10TH) Annual General Meeting of the Members
of. Ranchi Expressways Limited (CIN: U45209TG2011PLC073568) will be held on Friday,24" Day
of September 2021 at 02.00 PM at the Registered office of the Company Situated at Plot
No.1129/A,3rd Floor, Road No.36, Hi-tech City Road, Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad-500 033 to
transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st
March, 2021, together with the reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint director in place of Sri. N.Seethaiah (DIN:00784491), who retires by rotation

and being eligible, offers him for reappointment

By Order of the Board
Ranchi Expressways Limited

Place: Hyderabad Srinivasa Rad Kamma
Date: 01.09.2021 Director

DIN: 00022855



NOTES

1. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to
attend and vote instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member.

2. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the Registered Office of the Company
at any time but not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. A proxy
form is enclosed.

3. Corporate Members need to send their Authorized Representatives along with a copy of
Board resolution authorizing them to participate in the meeting. And Authorized
representative need not be a member of the company.

4. Members seeking any information with regards to the accounts are requested to write to
the Company at an early date, so as to enable the Management to keep the information

ready for the Meeting.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
(Pursuant to section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013)

#None of the Items in notice require any Explanatory Statement under this section 102(1)#



RANCHI EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED
CIN: U45209TG2011PLC073568

Reg off: Plot No.1129/A, 3rd Floor, Road No.36, Hitech City Road, Jubilee Hills Hyderabad-
500033, Telangana, India
Tel 040-235569001: Fax: 040-23556005: website: www.madhucon.com

FORM NO. MGT-11
PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

10TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING- Friday, 24" Day of September, 2021
At Registered Office of the Company

Name of the Company : RANCHI EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

Registered office : Plot No.1129/A, 3™ Floor, Road No.36
Hitech City Road, Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad-500033,
Telangana, India

Name of the Member(s)

Registered Address

E-mail ID

Folio No/Client ID

DPID (If Applicable)

I/We, being the member(s) of ............. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint
1. Name:

Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature:

and whose signature (s) are appended below as my proxy to attend and vote (on poll) on my behalf
at the 10™ Annual general meeting of the Company, to be held on Friday,24™ Day of September
2021 at Registered Office and at any adjourned thereof in respect of such resolutions as are
indicated below:

Resolution No. Resolutions Vote**

For | Against 1

Ordinary Business

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial
1 Statements for the Year Ended 31st March, 2021,
together with the reports of the Board of Directors
and the Auditors thereon.

2 To appoint director in place of Sri. N. Seethaiah (DIN:
00784491), who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers him for reappointment.




Signed this -------------- day of ----- , 2021, Affix
Revenue
Stamp
here

Signature of Shareholder

Signature of Proxy holder (S)

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed
and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48

hours before the commencement of the Meeting.



RANCHI EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members of
Ranchi Expressways Limited

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their Tenth (10Th) Annual Report together with
Audited Financial Statement for the financial Year Ended 31st March, 2021.

Financial highlights

Particulars 20202-21 2019-20
Rs.
Operating Income NIL NIL
Other Income NIL NIL
Total Income NIL NIL
Operating Expenses NIL NIL
Finance Costs ' NIL NIL
General and Administration Expenses NIL 93,822
'lotal Expenses NIL 93,822
Profit [/  (Loss) from Continuing | NIL (93,822)
Operations
Add: Other Comprehensive income NIL NIL
Total Comprehensive Income for the | NiL (93,822)
Period
Dividend

During the year 2020-21, Company has not earned any profit and hence not recommended
dividend.

Transfer to reserves

Due to losses in financial year 2020-21, resulting in debit balance in retained earnings, no
amount has been transferred to reserves.
Deposits

During the year under review, your Company has not accepted nor renewed any deposits
covered under Chapter V of the Act.

Extract of annual return
The extracts of Annual Return pursuant to the provisions of Section 92(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and



administration) Rules, 2014, in Form MGT-9 is as per Annexure-l and forms part of this
report.

Change in the nature of business
There are no such changes in the nature of business during the year under review.

Material changes and commitments, if any affecting the financial position, occurred
between end of the financial year and the date of the report: None

Significant and material orders passed by the courts and tribunals

1. A Public Interest Litigation (PIL), WP (PIL) No.3503/14 is pending at the
Hon'ble High Court of Jharkhand.

2. NHAI has terminated the Concession Agreement on 30th January, 2019 and
further the Performance Bank Guarantee of Rs.73.96 Crs was invoked.

3. The company referred the matter to Conciliation Committee of Independent
Experts (CCIE) of NHAI for settlement of dues with NHAI and the
proceedings will Commence Soon.

Changes in directors and key managerial personnel

During the year under review, there are no changes in the constitution of Board of
Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel.

Director(s) retirement by rotation

As per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of Company, Sri
N.Seethaiah (DIN: 00784491) retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for
reappointment.

Directors’ responsibility statement
Pursuant to the requirement under section 134(3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, it is
hereby Confirmed:
a. That in the preparation of annual accounts for the Financial Year Ended 31st
March, 2021; the applicable Accounting Standards have been followed along
with proper explanation relating to material departures.

b. That the Directors have selected Accounting Policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent, so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company, at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the
Company for that period.



c. That the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities.

d. That the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by
the company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and are
operating effectively.

e. That the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and
operating effectively.

Formal annual evaluation of directors

The performance of Directors is evaluated by the Board (excluding the Director being
evaluated) on the following criteria.

Evaluation Criteria:

e Contribution to development of strategy and risk management.

e Guidance on corporate strategy, risk policy, corporate governance practices.
¢ Independent and unbiased decisions/opinions etc.

Compliance with secretarial standards on board meetings and general meetings:

The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the institute of Company
Secretaries of India (ICSI) on Board Meetings and General Meetings.

Board meetings

The Board met 5 (Five) times during the financial year 2020-21 on May 21, 2020; July 10,
2020; August 17, 2020; November 09,2020 and February 08, 2021.

Statutory auditors

M/s. Ghoshal & Ghoshal, Chartered Accountants, Hyderabad (Firm Regn. No. 304013E),
were appointed as statutory Auditors of your Company at the Annual General Meeting of
the Company held on 22" September, 2017 for a term of 5 (Five) consecutive years. As per
the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and resolution passed at the
respective AGM, the appointment of Auditors is required to be ratified by Members at
every Annual General Meeting. However, with the notification of amended section 139 of
Companies Amendment Act, 2017, the appointment of Statutory Auditors is not required
to be ratified at every Annual General Meeting.

State of company’s affairs and board’s response to observations in audit report
Ranchi Expressways Limited was incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956, on 210TH
Day of March, 2011 as a Special Purpose Vehicle for Design, Build, Finance, Operate and



Transfer (DBFOT) of Four Laning of Ranchi-Rargaon-Jamshedpur Section of NH-33 from Km.
114.000 to Km. 277.500 in the state of Jharkhand on DBFOT (Annuity) basis for a
concession period of 15 years. This contract was awarded by National Highway Authority
of India. The Company shall hand over the Project Highway to NHAI on expiry of the
Concession Period.

The company has achieved physical progress of 50.24% and approached NHAI for One
Time Fund Infusion (OTFI) for completion of the remaining stretch. NHAI has initially
sanctioned an amount of Rs.223 Crs as One Time Fund Infusion and subsequently NHAI has
gone back by cancelling the already sanction OTFlI amount of Rs.223 Crs. Lenders and the
company have preferred One Time Settlement (OTS) with NHAI for the works already
completed.

While negotiations are going on for OTS proposal, NHAI has terminated the Concession
Agreement on 30/01/2019 without following the termination procedure laid down in the
Concession Agreement and called for tenders from public to complete the balance work on
EPC basis. Since project got terminated, Lenders are seeking for One time Settlement.
Company and Lenders agreed and requested the NHAI to refer the matter to Conciliation
Committee of Independent Engineers. The NHAI had given the consent vide it's letter
dated 18-04-2019. The Company has submitted the claim with NHAI. The proceedings will
commence soon. In view of the above going concern assumption is not appropriate and
therefore Financial Statement have been drawn accordingly.

Secretarial audit report

As required under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, the
board has appointed Sri. Venkat Krishna Reddy, Practicing Company Secretary (ACS-53083,
CP-19542), to carry on the Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2020-21.The Secretarial

Audit report in form MR-3 is attached to this report as Annexure Il and forms part of this
report.

Composition of audit committee

The Audit Committee consisting of Board members as follows:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), Government of India, through a Circular dated
July 13, 2017, exempted the certain classes of unlisted public companies from the
requirements of constituting the Audit Committee and the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee.In view of the aforesaid Circular, the Company has been exempted by the MCA
from constituting the aforesaid committee, as Madhucon Project Limited (Listed Entity) is
an Ultimate Holding Company which holds shares through their wholly owned subsidiaries.

Accordingly, the Audit Committee of the Company was dissolved with requisite approval of
the Board.



Corporate social responsibility
The Company does not fall under the criteria specified in Section 135 of the Act and hence
no policy was developed by the company on Corporate Social Responsibility.

Related party transactions

All related party transactions during the financial year 2020-21 were in the ordinary course
of business at arms-length price and the Particulars of contracts or arrangements with
related parties in form No. AOC-2 as required pursuant to provisions of Section 134(3)(h)

and Rule 8 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are as per Annexure - Il and forms part of
this report.

Particulars of loans, investments, guarantees and securities

Loans, Guarantees and Investments of the Company were in compliances with Sec 180 and
Sec 186 of the Companies Act 2013.

Information as per section 134 (3) (m) the companies act, 2013 read with rule 8 of
companies (accounts) rules, 2014

(a)Conservation of energy and technology absorption: The Company is taking steps with
respect to conservation of Energy and Technology absorption and making continuous
efforts to keep the employees informed of all emerging technologies and developments
which are relevant to Business of the Company.

(b) Foreign exchange earnings and outgo: NIL

Adequacy of internal financial controls

The Company has structured and implemented a procéss Driven framework for Internal
Financial Controls (“IFC”) in terms of the explanation to Section 134(5)(e) of the Companies
Act, 2013. The Board of Directors of the Company is of the opinion that the Company has
sound IFC for the year 2020-21. The Company is continuously monitoring and identified
the gaps if any, and implements improved controls wherever the effect of such gaps would
have a material effect on the Company’s operations.

Further, Your Company has adequate system of Internal Financial Control developed by
our in-house Internal Audit team consisting of qualified and experienced accounting,
costing and technical professionals. The Internal Audit Team suggests various means of
cost reduction and cost control measures in all resources used in the Company. The
Internal Financial Control Systems and the Reports of Internal Audit will be reviewed by
the Audit Committee in consultation with the Internal Auditors and Statutory Auditors and
experts in the field thereafter by Board of Directors.



Vigil mechanism

The company has established Vigil Mechanism for Directors / Employees to report their
genuine concerns or grievances. The Audit Committee of the holding Company oversees
the vigil Mechanism through the Committee. It provides for adequate safeguards against
victimization of directors/ employees who avail of the mechanism. It also provides for
direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. In case of repeated frivolous
complaints, the suitable action will be initiated by the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Risk management policy

The Company has formulated a policy for Risk management and Periodic assessments to

identify the risk areas are carried out by the management and necessary actions were
taken to eliminate risk.

Disclosures under sexual harassment of women at workplace (prevention, prohibition &
redressal) act, 2013.

Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for
every individual working in company’s premises through various interventions and
practices. The Company always endeavors to create and provide an environment that is
free from discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment.

Your Directors further stated that during the year under review, there were no cases filed

pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013.

Acknowledgements

Your Directors place on record their appreciation for the co-operation and assistance
received from the Government Authorities, NHAI, Bankers and Clients during the period
under review. Your Directors also extend their appreciation for the valuable work rendered
by the employees for the development of the Company at various levels.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Ranchi expressways limited

Place: Hyderabad Srinivasa Rao Kamma Madhu
Date: 01.09.2021 Director Director

DIN: 00022855 DIN: 00368625



ANNEXURE |

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31.03.2021
(Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014)

. Registration & other details

1.| CIN U45209TG2011PLCO73568 -

2.| Registration Date 29.03.2011

3.| Name of the Company RANCHI EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

4.| Category/Sub-category | Company Limited by Shares
of the Company

5.| Address of the Plot No.1129/A,3rd Floor, Road No.36, Hitech City Road,
Registered office & Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad-500033, Telangana
contact details

6.| Whether listed No
company

7.| Name, Address & KFintech Pvt Ltd
contact details of the Tower — B, Plot No 31 & 32, Selenuim Building Financial
Registrar & Transfer District, Nanakramguda, Gachibowli, Hyderabad,
Agent, if any. Telangana 500032.

Il.  Principal business activities of the company

(All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be
stated)

S. No. Name and Description of main NIC Code of the | % to total turnover of
products / services Product/service the company

1 Development of 4 laning of Ranchi-
Rargaon-Jamshedpur Section of NH-33
from Km 114.000 to Km 277.500 in the
state of Jharkhand under NHAI Phase-
lll on Design, Build, Finance, Operate
and Transfer (DBFOT) Annuity Basis, on
a concession period of 15 years. The
construction work is under progress.

421 100%




lll.  Particulars of holding, subsidiary and associate companies:

S.No | Name of the Company and CIN Holding/ Subsidiary/ | % of shares held
Associate

1 Madhucon Projects Limited Ultimate Holding 0.017

2 Madhucon Infra Limited Holding company of Holding 0.020
Company

3 Madhucon Toll Highways Limited Holding Company 99.938

IV. Share holding pattern (Equity share capital breakup as percentage of total equity)

Category-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of the No. of Shares held at the end of the %
Shareholder year[As on 01° Apr 2020] year[As on 31-March-2021] Ch
s an
Demat | Physical Total % of Demat | Physical Total % of | ge
Total Total | dur
Shares Share | ing
s | the
ye
ar
A.
Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual/ 0 20000 20000 | 0.025 0 20000 20000 | 0.025 0
HUF
b) Central 0 0 0 0 0] 0 0 0 0
Govt
c) State 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Govt(s)
d) Bodies 80780000 0| 80780000 | 99.975 | 80780000 0| 80780000 | 99.97 0
Corp. 5
e) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
f) Any other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 80780000 20000 | 80800000 100 | 80780000 20000 | 80800000 100 0
shareholding
of Promoter
(A)
B. Public
Shareholding
1.
Institutions L
a) Mutual 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0




Funds

b) Banks / FI

c) Central
Govt

d) State
Govt(s)

e) Venture
Capital Funds

f} Insurance
Companies

g) Flls

h) Foreign
Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others
(specify)

Sub-total
(B)(1):-

2. Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies
Corp.

i) Indian

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal
share capital
uptoRs. 1
lakh

OO0 |O|0O

o0 |00

o000 |0O

O0O|O|O

o|0O|O |0

O|0|0 |0

oO|0|0 |0

O|0|0|0o

OO0 |0o

i) Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal
share capital
in excess of
Rs 1 lakh

c) Others
(specify)

Non Resident
Indians

Overseas
Corporate




Bodies B
Foreign 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Nationals
Clearing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Members N )
Trusts 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Foreign 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Bodies- DR
Sub-total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(B)(2):-
Total Public 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+
(B)(2)
C. Shares 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
held by
Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs
Grand Total 80780000 20000 80800000 100 | 80780000 20000 | 80800000 100
(A+B+C)
B) Shareholding of promoters-
S Shareholder’s Shareholding at the beginning of | Shareholding at the end of the %
N Name the year year change
No. of % of | %of No. of % of %of in
Shares total | Shares Shares total Shares shareh
Shares | Pledged / Shares | Pledged olding
of the | encumbe of the /encumbe | during
compa | red to compan | red to the
ny total y total year
shares shares
1 Nama Seethaiah 8888 8888 0
2 | Nama Krishnaiah 8888 8888 0
3 | Kamma Srinivasa 888 | 0.025 0 888 | 0.025 0 0
Rao
4 | Nama Prithvi Teja 888 888 0
5 | M. Madhu 448 448 0
6 | Madhucon Infra 16000 | 0.020 16000 |  0.020 0
Limited
4 Madhucon Tol 80750000 | 99.938 | 93.08% | 80750000 | 99.938 |  93.08% 0
Highways Limited
£ | Machfieon Biojects 14000 | 0.017 14000 | 0.017 0
Limited




C) Change in promoters’ shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

SN

Particulars

Shareholding

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of % of total | No. of % of total
shares shares of | shares shares of the
the company
company
At the beginning of the year
01.04.2020 80800000 100 80800000 100
2 Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Promoters Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons for Nil Nil Nil Nil
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment
/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):
3 At the end of the year 31.03.2021 80800000 100 80800000 100

D) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

There are no Top ten shareholders who are Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs
and ADRs.

E) Shareholding of directors and key managerial personnel:

SN | Shareholding of each Directors and each | Shareholding Cumulative Shareholding
Key Managerial Personnel during the
year
No. of | % of total No. of % of total
shares | shares of the | shares shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year 10224 | 0.013 10224 0.013
Date wise Increase / Decrease in |0 0 0 0
Promoters Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase
/decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc.):
At the end of the year 10224 | 0.013 10224 0.013




V) Indebtedness —

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for
payment.

The Details were stated in Notes to the Audited Financial Statements for the year 2020-21.
VI. Remuneration of directors and key managerial personnel: Nil
VIl. Penalties / punishment/ compounding of offences:

There are no Penalties, Punishments and Compounding Levied/Prosecuted on any of the

Directors, other officers and on Company during the year 2020-21. On these grounds, this heading
is not applicable.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Ranchi expressways limited

4

Place: Hyderabad ini -Rpo Kamma Madhu Malampati
Date: 01.09.2021 Director Director

DIN: 00022855 DIN: 00368625



FORM NO. AOC-2

ANNEXURE-II

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 8(2)

of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: None

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature
of relationship

(b) Nature of Contract(s) or arrangement(s)

(c) Duration of the Contracts/arrangements/
Transactions

(d) Salient terms of the Contracts/
arrangements/transactions including the
value, if any

(e) Justification for entering into such
contracts/arrangements/transactions

(f) Date(s) of approval by the board

(g) Amount paid as advances, if any

(h) Date on which the special resolution was
passed in general meeting as required under
first proviso to section 188

Not applicable

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

(a) Name(-s) of the related party and nature
of relationship

(b) Nature of Contract(s) or arrangement(s)

(c) Duration of the Contracts/arrangements/
Transactions

(d) Salient terms of the Contracts/
arrangements/transactions including the
value, if any

(e) Date(s) of approval by the board

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any

As stated in Notes (Note 36) to Audited
Financial Statements.

Place: Hyderabad SrinivasaRao Kamma MadHu ampati
Director Director
DIN: 00022855 DIN: 00368625

Date: 01.09.2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Ranchi expressways limited




VENKATA KRISHNA & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

FORM NO-MR 3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rule 9 of the

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

To,

The Members of,

RANCHI EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED,

Madhucon House, Plot No.1129/A, Road No.36

Hitech City Road, Jubilee Hills Hyderabad TG 500033 IN

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable
statutory provisions of the Acts, Rules and Regulations as mentioned
below and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. RANCHI
EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED, (CIN: U45209TG2011PLC073568) (herein
after called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification on the company's books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
company and also the information provided by the company, its officers,
agents and other authorised representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the company has
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st
March,2021 Not complied with the some of the statutory provisions
listed here under, in the manner and subject to the reporting made here
in after:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by RANCHI
EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED for the financial year ended
31stMarch,2021 according to the provisions of:-

i. The Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under as applicable.
f‘:i,'i\ The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and the rules made
7 8E=Sdp\ there under,
M. No. 53083 :1;:;;

=1 . 1y 19142 “I'he Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye Laws framed
#</there under. )

Flat #C-1, 4th Floor, Eureka Court, Behind Image Hospitals, Ameerpet, Hyderabad-500073

Mobile: +91 9492388926, Email : vkrishna.acs@gmail.com



iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and
regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment and Overseas Direct Investment.

Since the Company’s Equity Shares are not listed on any Stock
Exchange, the following regulations, which are applicable to

companies whose Equity Shares are listed, does not apply to the
Company:

(a)The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009

(b)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(c)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015

(d The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based
Employee Benefit Schemes) Regulations, 2014;

(e)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity
Shares) Regulations, 2009

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of
Securities) Regulations, 1998

v. | have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the
following:
(a) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company

Secretaries of India in respect of Board and General Meetings of
the Company through Revised SSI and SS2.

|, further report that:

(2) The Board of Directors of the Company is constituted with only Three
Directors in the Board, and there is no Independent Directors in the
Board of the Company and so the Company is not in a position to
form Audit Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee
in the absence of Definition of the word wholly owned subsidiary,
company is defending himself by MCA Circular No0.09/2017 dated
05.09.2017 as wholly owned subsidiary and take exemption to
mandatory appointment of independent directors required under Rule
4 of Chapter XI The Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of
Directors) .

Whereas of my opinion it is mandatory to comply with the Provisions
of the Companies act,2013 and to Appoint independent Directors, to
form the Audit Committee and Nomination and Remuneration
Committee.




(b) Adequate Notice is given to all the Directors to schedule the Board
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least 7
days in advance. There is adequate system for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and meaningful participation at the meeting. Majority
decision are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of
the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board,
as the case may be.

(c) It is also noted that the Company has an Internal Audit System to
constantly monitor the process for efficient compliances.

(d) During the period under review the Company has complied with the
provisions of the Act, Rules |, Regulations Guidelines , Standards etc
mentioned above subject to the following observations:

)

ii)

The Board of Directors not appointed neither the managing
Director not Whole time Directors or CEO to Manage the day
to day affairs of the Company.

The Company has not complied with the provision of Section
203 of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding KMP appointment
as there is no CFO and Company Secretary .

Mr.Madhu Mallampati, Director (Din-00368625) filed a petition
for compounding on the viclation of section 165 of the
Companies Act,2013 as number of Directorship holding at that
time(in December,2015)was more than 10 in public Companies
and Subsequently resigned in some companies to comply
within the limit. Subsequently the matter was referred by the
Registrar of Companies, Hyderabad to the Court of Special
Judge for Economic offences-Cum VIII AMSJ, Nampally,
Hyderabad,The Court imposed Fine as applicable for the period
of default of 275 days at the rate of Rs.5000/- per days. At
Present an appeal is pending before The Hon'ble High Court,
Telangana.

The Company has not complied with the provision of Rule 25A
of the Companies (incorporation ) Rules,2014 of the Companies
Act, 2013 regarding mandatory filling of e-Form INC-22-
A(Active Company Tagging ldentities and Verification). The
Company has not filed the Above Form.



V) In our Opinion and to the best of our information and
Explanations given to me the Company has the Following
Pending litigations/Cases During the Reporting Period:

AMOUNT OF
CASE TITLE AND
Sr.No COURT NUMBER DETAILS C(Ikl-‘\?’ll\)ll
OA.No.214/ Rs.

1 2020, DRT-l, Hyderabad | OA Filed by Canara | 12,34,20,11,961/-
Bank and 9 others

against REL & Others
WP 7761/2020, REL filed Writ Petition
High Court of Telangana, | agianst OBC to
2 Hyderabad suspend the operation
of Letter
Dt.20.03.2020

WP.No0.5975/2021 REL filed Writ Petition
3 High Court of Telangana, | against SBI to stay all
Hyderabad further proceedings

in my opinion and to the best of my information and according
to the examinations carried out by me and explanations
furnished and representations made to me by the Company, its
officers and agents, | report that Company has complied with
the provisions of the Act, the Rules made there under and the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company with
regard to:

a. Maintenance of various statutory registers and documents
and making necessary entries there in;

b. Closure of Register of Members;

c. Forms, returns, documents and resolutions required to be
filed with the Registrar of Companies, Regional Director,
Central Government, National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT)

or other Authorities;

AR A d. Service of documents by the Company on its Members ,Stock
Exchanges, Auditors and the Registrar of Companies;

e. Notice of Board and various Committee meetings of Directors;

f. The:meetings of Directors and all the Committees of Directors
and passing of circular resolutions;




g. The 9th Annual General Meeting of the Company was held on
27" October,2020:

h. Minutes of the proceedings of the Board Meetings, Committee
Meetings and General Meetings;

i. Approvals of the Board of Directors, Committee of Directors,
Members and Government Authorities, where ever required,;

j. Payment of remuneration to Directors ,Managing Director and
Executive Directors;

k. Appointment and Remuneration of Statutory Auditors and Cost
Auditors;

. Transfer and transmission of the Company's shares, issue
and allotment of shares and issue and delivery of certificates
of shares;

m. Borrowings and registration of charges;

n. Report of the Board of Directors;

o. Investment of the Company's funds including inter-corporate
loans and investments;

p. Generally, all other applicable provisions of the Act and the
Rules there under.

| further report that the compliance by the Company of applicable
financial laws, like direct and indirect tax laws, has not been reviewed in
this audit since the same have been subject to review by internal
auditors and other designated professionals.

| further report that on examination of the relevant documents and
records and based on the information provided by the Company, its
officers and authorized representatives during the conduct of the audit,
and also on the review of compliance reports by respective department
heads of the Company, in our opinion, there are adequate systems and
processes and control mechanism exist in the Company to monitor and
ensure compliance with applicable general laws..

I further report that during the audit period there were no
embezzlement / frauds and no specific events/actions having a major
bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred
laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc except A Civil PIL
writ Petition number 3503/2014 in the Hon’ble High Court of Jharkhand ,
Ranchi as briefed below:

Ranchi Expressways Limited (REL), a Public Limited Company, was
incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956, on2nd Day of June, 2010

as a Special Purpose Vehicle for Design, Build, Operate, Finance and
Transfer of 4 laning of Ranchi-Rangoan-Jamshedpur section of NH-33

from KM 114.00 to Km 277.500 in the state of Jharkand on annuity
______basis for a concession period of 15 years. This contract was awarded
' by NHAI. The company shall hand over the Project Highway to NHAI on
; expiry of concession period and the company has achieved whysical
195,ﬁm ress of 560.24% and approached NHAI for One Time Fund Infusion
%__]( FI) for completion of the remaining stretch. NHAI has initially




sanctioned an amount of Rs.223 Crs as One Time Fund Infusion and
subsequently NHAI has gone back by cancelling the already sanction
OTFIl amount of Rs.223 Crs. Lenders and the company have preferred

One Time Settlement (OTS) with NHAI for the works already completed,
While negotiations are going on for OTS proposal, NHAI has terminated
the Concession Agreement on 30/01/2020 without following the
termination procedure laid down in the Concession Agreement and
called for tenders from public to complete the balance work on EPC
basis. Since project got terminated, Lenders are seeking for One Time
Settlement. Company and Lenders agreed and requested the NHAI to
refer the matter to Conciliation Committee of Independent Engineers
(CCIE) and The NHAI had given the consent for referring the matter to
CCIE vide its letter dated 18-04-2019. The company has submitted the
claim with NHAI. The proceedings of CCIE were commenced on 25-09-
2019 and held several meetings but no settlement has been reached as
informed by the management. It is also informed that Arbitration
Proceedings have also commenced.

CBIl has filed FIR against the Company, Promoters and Directors on
12/03/2019. Under Prevention of Corruption Act and Indian Penal Code.
Subsequently the Enforcement Directorate has raided the premises of
the Company on 11/06/2021 and the investigation is under progress.

| have relied on the information supplied and representation made by the
Company and its officers, agents, for systems and mechanism followed by
the Company for compliance under the applicable Acts, Laws and
Regulations to the Company and my Annexed even letter dated is to be
read along-with with this report.

For Venkata Krishna & Associates
Company Secretaries
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VENKATA KRISHNA & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

To,

The Members of,

RANCHI EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED,

Madhucon House, Plot No.1129/A, Road No.36

Hitech City Road, Jubilee Hills Hyderabad TG 500033 IN

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an
opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. | have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate
to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents
of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to
ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. | believe
that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

3. | have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial
records, Books of Accounts and Statutory Dues of the Company as
commented by the Auditors.

4. Where ever required, | have obtained the Management representation
about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of
events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable
laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of
management. My examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which
the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Venkata Krishna & Associates

P Company Secretaries
V45
Gf M No 53083 |\ B .
Place: Hyderabad ¢\ No. 18542 ) 8 S V Krishna Reddy

Date : 23.07.2921 Proprietor

Flat #C-1, 4th Floor, Eureka Court, Behind Image Hospitals, Ameerpet, Hyderabad-500073
Mobile: +91 9492388926, Email : vkrishna.acs@gmail.com



GHOSHAL & GHOSAL

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To,
The Members of Ranchi Expressways Limited

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Ranchi Expressways Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31*March, 2021, the statement of Profit and
Loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes
in equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, (herein after referred to as “standalone Ind AS financial statements”)

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income , cash flows and changes in equity of the company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our
audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules-made thereunder.

We conduct’éd"pur audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10)
: ofthe[;tct. TF gfl.'g Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
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audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control
relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone Ind
AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Emphasis of Matters

Ranchi Expressways Limited (REL), a Public Limited Company, was incorporated under the Companies
Act, 1956, on2™ Day of June, 2010 as a Special Purpose Vehicle for Design, Build, Operate, Finance and
Transfer of 4 laneing of Ranchi-Rangoan-Jamshedpur section of NH-33 from KM 114.00 to Km 277.500
in the state of Jharkand on annuity basis for a concession period of 15 years. This contract was
awarded by NHAI The company shall hand over the Project Highway to NHAI on expiry of concession
period.

The company has achieved physical progress of 50.24% and approached NHAI for One Time Fund
Infusion (OTFI) for completion of the remaining stretch. NHAI has initially sanctioned an amount of
Rs.223 Crs as One Time Fund Infusion and subsequently NHAI has gone back by cancelling the already
sanction OTFI amount of Rs.223 Crs. Lenders and the company have preferred One Time Settlement
(OTS) with NHAI for the works already completed.

While negotiations are going on for OTS proposal, NHAI has terminated the Concession Agreement
on 30/01/2020 without following the termination procedure laid down in the Concession Agreement
[as informed by the company]. Since project got terminated, Lenders are seeking for One Time
Settlement. Company and Lenders agreed and requested the NHAI to refer the matter to Conciliation
Committee of Independent Engineers {CCIE).

The NHAI had given the consent for referring the matter to CCIE vide its letter dated 18-04-2019. The
company has submitted the claim with NHAIL The proceedings of CCIE were commenced on 25-09-
2019 as informed by the management. It is also informed that Arbitration Proceedings have also
commenced.

CBI has filed FIR against the Company, Promoters and Directors on 12/03/2019 under Prevention of
Corruption Act and Indian Penal Code. Subsequently, the Enforcement Directorate has raided the
~premises of the company on 11-6-2021 and the investigation is under progress.



An amount of Rs.404.23 crores hitherto shown as part of other equity from group companies
has been now reclassified as Long term borrowings and the same have been reclassified and
regrouped in previous years for comparison purpose resulting in the overstatement of long
term borrowings and corresponding understatement of Equity.

Cost incurred on the project up-to 31* March, 2021 Rs. 12,96,14,16,023/- instead of writing-off, has
been accounted as Claims receivable under the head "Other Current Assets" which is in contravention
of the provisions of Indian accounting standard Ind AS 37 (Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets) claims being contingent asset in nature. This has resulted in over-statement of
Current Assets by Rs. 12,96,14,16,023/- and understatement of cumulative loss by the same amount.

In view of the above, the termination of the Concession Agreement indicates the existence of a
material uncertainty that cast significant doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern.,

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Other Matters

Further to the continuous spreading of COVID-19 across India, there was a virtual & non
movement of people various state governments announced a strict lockdown in the month of
May, 2021 and further extended to control the spread of virus. This has resulted in restriction on
physical visit to the client locations and the need for carrying out alternative audit procedures as
per the standards on auditing prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI).

As a result of the above, the entire of audit was carried out based on remote access of the data
as provided by the management. This has been carried out based on the advisory on “Specific
considerations while conducting distance audit / remote audit / online audit under COVID-19
situation”

We have been represented by the management that the data provided for our audit purposes is
correct, complete, reliable and are directly generated by the accounting system of the company
without any further manual modifications.

We bring to the attention of the users that the audit of the financial statements has been
performed in the aforesaid conditions.

Our audit opinion is not modified in respect of the above.

P



Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India including the Ind AS :

a) Inthe case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the company as at March 31, 2021.

b) In the case of Profit and Loss Account, of the profit/ loss account for the year ended March 31,
2021

c) Inthe case of Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2021.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on
the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books,

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the statement of cash flows and the statement
of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d} In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone In AS financial statements comply with the
“Accounting-Standards” specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rule issued
thereunder;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2021 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from
being appointed as a director in terms of on 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in "Annexure B";
and

(g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:’

~|; “The Company does not have any pending litigations other than the claims with NHA! which
Q7 would impact its financial position.




ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For GHOSHAL & GHOSAL
Chartered Accountants

//Firm Rég, No. 304013E

(SSR Gupta)
Partiher
M. Np.023640
Hyderabad
Date: 25.06.2021



Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of Ranchi Expressways
Limited (“The Company”) on the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31st March
2021, we report that:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

7)

8)

9

a. The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets;

b. The fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at regular intervals and no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c. The title deeds of the immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

The Company is engaged in the business of infrastructure development and maintenance and hence
clause 3 (i) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 2016 relating to inventory is not applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) by the
respective entities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of sec 185 and 1860f the
Companies act, 2013 are complied with in the respect of loans, investments, guarantees and
securities given by the company, if any.

The Company has not accepted deposits and the derivatives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and
the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the rules framed there under are not applicable to the Company.

Maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed by the Central Government under section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly clause vi of paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
our books of accounts, the company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, sales- tax, service tax, and
any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities though there has been delay in few cases.

The Company has taken term loans from banks and financial institutions. The company has not
taken any loans or borrowings from any government and has not issued any debentures during the
year.

According to the information and explanation given to us the money raised by the way of term
loans were applied for the purpose for which those are raised. The Company did not raise any
money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and term

loans during the year.

the Company by its officers or] employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our

10) According to the information a)wd explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on

audit.

11) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the

: tecords of the Company, the Company has not paid or provided any managerial remuneration
" during the'year under audit. Hence, this clause is not applicable.

o~
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12) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

13) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177
and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
standalone Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

14) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

15) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

16) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act
1934,



Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Ranchi Expressways Limited
(“the Company”) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI'). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

/
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A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal control system over
the financial reporting as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

(V |



Ranchi Expressway Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2021

As at As at
RABTIEUALRS iz March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
ASSETS
Non-current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 3
Investment Property 4

Intangible assets

(i) under SCA

(ii) others 3
Intangible assets under development
Financial assets

(i) Investments

(i) Other financial assets 5
Tax assets
(i) Deferred Tax Asset (net)
Other non-current assets 6 -

Total Non-current Assets
Current Assets
Financial assets

(i} Current Investment 7 2,010,000 2,010,000
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 8 3,906,623 3,906,805
(iii) Other bank balance
(iv) Other financial assets 9 13,404,647,075 13,400,734,557
(¢) Current tax assets (Net) 10 28,252,353 28,252 353
Other current assets 11 448,076,291 448,326,291
Assets classified as held for sale
Total Current Assets 13,886,892,342 13,883,230,006
Total Assets 13,886,892,342 13,883,230,006
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equily share capital 12 808,000,000 808,000,000
Other Equity 13 (2,094,612,056) (2,094,612,056)
Total Equity (1,286,612,056) (1.286,612,056)
LIABILITIES

Non-current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

(i) Long-term borrowings 6] 4,042,258,261 4,042,258,261

(i) Trade payables

(iiiy Other financial liabilities 16 = -
Provisions 17 = -
Deferred tax liabilities (Net)
Total Non-current Liabilities 4,042,258,261 4,042,258,261

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 14 10,306,633,553 10,306,533,553
(i) Trade payables 18 48,149,648 48,149,648
(iiiy Other financial liabilities 19 536,067,498 517,544,905
Provisions 20 65,798 55,798
(c) Current tax liabilities (Net)
Other current liabilities 21 240,439,641 255,299,897
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale
Total Current Liabilities 11,131,246,138 11,127,583,801
Total Liabilities 15,173,504,399 15,169,842,062
Total Equity and Liabilities 13,886,892,342 13,883,230,006
Notes 1 to 48 forms part of the Financial Statements
For Ghoshal & Ghosal For and on behalf of Board
Chartered Accountants of Ranchi Expressways Limited

Firm's Registration No:304013L

L]

SSR.GUPTA K SRENTVASA RAO W ALAMPATI
Purth:r--‘.__ A Director Director
Membekshif No. 023640 Din - 00022855 Din - 00368625

Place: Hyderabad
Date:  -06-2021




Ranchi Expressway Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31st March 2021

PARTICULARS

Notes For the year ended Mar

31, 2021

For the year ended Mar
31, 2020

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total Income

Expenses

Construction Cost

Operation & Maintenance Expenses
Employee benefits expenses

Finance Costs

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
Other Expenses

Total expenses
Profit before exceptional items and tax

Add: Exceptional items
Profit before tax

Less: Tax expense
(1) Current tax
(2) MAT credit entitlement

Profit for the period from continuing operations (1)
Other Comprehensive Income

Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans

Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the period

Earnings per share (Face Value % 10/- per share) Not annualised

.(1) Basic (in Rs.)
(2) Diluted (in Rs.)

22
23

25 s
26 -
27

93,822

93,822

(93,822)

(93,822)

(93,822)

(93,822)

For Ghoshal & Ghosal
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 304013E

S.S.R/
Parthf:i‘l.' : S5/
MemBe[;h_igH :,Q23§4{)

Place: Hyderabad
Date:  -06-2021

For and on behalf of Board

f Ranchi Expressways Li

KS IVASA RAO

Director
Din - 00022855

Al JAYA
A ( F&A)

Director

ited

HT MALAMPATI

Din - 00368625




Ranchi Expressway Limited
Cash Flow Statement as on 31st March 2021

- Particulars 2020-21 2019-20

A |Net profit / (loss) before tax and extraordinary items - (93,822)
Adjustment for
Depreciation and amortisation expense - -
Interest expense - .
Interest income
Operating profit before working capital changes - (93,822)
Adjustments for:
Increase / (Decrease) in long term provisions -
Increase / (Decrease) in current financial liabilities
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payable - -
Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilitites (14,860,257) (1,190,465)
Increase / (Decrease) in other current {inancial liabilitites 18,522,593 5,739,935
Increase / (Decrease) in other non current financial liabilities B -
Increase / (Decrease) in short term provisions - -
(Increase) / Decrease in other non-current assets -

(Increase) / Decrease in current tax - (27,000)

(Increase) / Decrease in other non current financial asset E -

(Increase) / Decrease in other financial asset (3,912,518) (7,852,061)

(Increase) / Decrease in other current assets 250,000 3,500,041

Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities (182) 76,628
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)

Net Cash(used in)/generated from Operating Activities (182) 76,628

B |Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets
Sale/dispose off of fixed assets
Purchase of current investments
Interest received

Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities - -

C |Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of capital

Proceeds from unsecured loan- deemed equity - =
Proceeds from long term borrowings-bank - =
Interest paid -

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities - -

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

(A+B+C) (182) 76,628
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 3,906,805 3,830,177
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year 3,906,623 3,906,805

Notes:

1. Cash flow statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Ind AS 7 - Cash Flow statements

2. Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and bank balances and are not available due to freezing by banks on the behalf of NHAL
3. Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever applicable.

For Ghoshal & Ghosal For and on behalf of Board
Chartered Accountants Limited

Firm's Registration No. 304013E

f Ranchi Expresswa

S.S.R. GUPTA KS SA RAO
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 033640 Din - 00022855 Din - 00368625

Place: Hyderabad A. @X)«MAYA
Date:  -06-2021 ANGM ( F&A)

ALAMPATI




Ranchi Expressway Limited
Notes to financial statements for the Year ended March 2021

1

2.01

Corporate Information

Ranchi Expressways Limited was incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956, on 29th Day of March, 2011 as a Special
Purpose Vehicle for Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFOT) of Four Laning of Ranchi-Rargaon-Jamshedpur
Section of NH-33 from Km. 114.000 to Km. 277.500 in the state of Jharkhand on DBFOT (Annuity) basis for a concession
period of 15 years. This contract was awarded by National Highway Authority of India. The Company shall hand over the
Project Highway to NHAI on expiry of the Concession Period.

Concession Agreement was signed in the year 2011. There is abonormal delay in providing ROW by NHAI and the project got
delayed due to delay in handing over of land

As per Concession Agreement(CA), on achivement of PCOD, NHAI was to pay Semi Annuities to the Company after
completion of 6 months from the date of PCOD. The Company was to service interest and principal on receipt of Semi
Annuities from NHAI.

The Company had achieved physical progress to the extent of 61.47%. Out of which, Independent Consultant has certified
the physical work progress of 50.24% and there was unmeasured work in progress is 11.23%

The company has approached NHAI for One Time Fund Infusion (OTFI) for completion of the remaining stretch. NHAI has
initially sanctioned an amount of Rs.223 Crs as One Time Fund Infusion and subsequently NHAI has gone back by cancelling
the already sanction OTF| amount of Rs.223 Crs. Lenders preferred One Time Settlement (OTS) with NHAL.

While negotiations are going on for OTS proposal, NHAI has terminated the Concession Agreement on 30/01/2019 without
following the termination procedure laid down in the Concession Agreement and called for tenders from public to complete the
balance work on EPC basis. Since project got terminated,Lenders are seeking for One Time Settlement. Lenders agreed and
requested the NHA! to refer the matter to Conciliation Committe of Independent Engineers.

As suggested by the bankers, the issue of settlement was referred to the CCIE. The CCIE has already held several meetings
but no settlement has been reached

As per the provisions of the Concession Agreement, the matter was referred for Arbitration on 17/07/2020 and the Arbitration
Tribunal consisting of three former Honble Judges of the Supreme Court/High Court was constitutetd on 11/11/2020. The
proceedings are now in progress as per the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996.

EPC contractor has made claims on the company. On receipt of arbitration award the company will negotiate with the EPC
Contractor to settle the claims.

CBI has filed FIR against the Company, Promoters and Directors on 12/03/2019. CBl is collecting information and
investigation is going on.

In view of the above going concern assumption is not appropriate and therefore financial statements have been drawn
accordingly.

Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of preparation
(a) Compliance with IndAS

The Company's financial statements comply in all material respects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant
provisions of the Act, Except as otherwise stated else where.

(b) Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following items

Items Measurement basis
Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value
Fair value of plan assets (if any) less
Net defined benefit (asset)/liability present value of defined benefit
obligations

(c) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with IndAS requires the management to make estimates and
assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets, liabilities (including contingent liabilities), income and expenses.
The Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable.
Actual results could differ due to these estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates are
recognised in the periods in which the results are known / materialize. Estimates include the useful lives of property plant and
equipment and intangible fixed assets, allowance for doubtful debts/advances, future obligations in respect of retirement
benefit plans, provisions for resurfacing obligations, fair value measurement etc.

(d) Measurement of fair values

A number of the accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values for both financial and non-
financial assets and liabilities. Fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, which are described as follows:

» Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that entity can access at
measurement date

- Level 2 inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as
prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and

« Level 3 inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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Presentation of financial statements

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in Schedule |lI
to the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”). The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared and presented as per the requirements
of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows". The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement
of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in Schedule |11 to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of accounts along with
the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified Accounting Standards.

Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees rounded off to two decimal places in line with the
requirements of Schedule 1.

Revenue recognition

The company has no revenue during the financial year.

Cash and bank balances

Cash and bank balances also include fixed deposits, margin money deposits, earmarked balances with banks and other bank
balances which have restrictions on repatriation. Short term highly liquid investments being not free from more than
insignificant risk of change are not included as part of cash and cash equivalents. Bank overdrafts which are part of the cash
management process is included as part of cash and cash equivalents.

Cash flow statement

Cash flow statement is prepared segregating the cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities. Cash flow from
operating activities is reported using indirect method. Under the indirect method, the net profit/(loss) is adjusted for the effects
of:

(a) transactions of a non-cash nature;

(b) any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and,

(c) all other items of income or expense associated with investing or financing cash flows.

The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available
information. Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) are reflected as such in the Cash Flow Statement. Those
cash and cash equivalents which are not available for general use as on the date of Balance Sheet are also included under
this category with a specific disclosure.

Current & Non Current classification :

Current Asset :

An asset shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(a) it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the company's normal operating cycle;

(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded.

(c) it is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date, or

(d) It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting date.

All other assets shall be classified as non-current.

Current Liabilities:

A liability shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(a) it is expected to be settled in the company’s normal operating cycle,

(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded,

(c) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date : or

(d) the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting date. Terms of a liability that could at the option of the counterparty, resuit in its settlement by the issue of equity
instruments do not effect its classification. All other liabilities shall be classified as non-current. ’

Property, plant and equipment (PPE)
The company do not own any itmes falling under the property, plant and quipment

Rights under Service Concession Arrangements

Annuity Projects (Unconditional right to receive cash from Authority)

Where Company has acquired contractual rights to receive specified determinable amounts, such rights are recognised and
classified as “Financial Assets", even though payments are contingent on Company ensuring that the infrastructure meets the
specified quality or efficiency requirements. Such financial assets are classified as “Receivables against Service Concession
Arrangements”.

The cost incurred for work beyond the original scope per Concession agreement (normally referred as "Change of Scope") is
recognised and classified as “Financial Assets as and when incurred.

Any Viability Gap Funding (VGF) in the form of equity support in connection with project construction is accounted as a
receivable and is adjusted to the extent of actual receipts.

Pre-operative expenses including administrative and other general overhead expenses that are directly attributable to the
development or acquisition of right under service Concession Arrangements are allocated and recognised and classified as
“Financial Assets". However, the service concession agreement has been terminated.

Investments

The company does not hold any trade investments either of long term or short term.

Borrowing costs

Interest is not provided during the financial year due to term loans became NPA
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a)

b)

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) for the year by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) for the year as
adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive
potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and
the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity
shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit
per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning
of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds
receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive
potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially
dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate.

Income taxes

During the Financiacl Year the company does not have any revenue hence MAT and deffered taxes will not applicable and
provisons have not been made.

No Deferred tax Provisions are made for the year.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events and it is

probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be
made.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognsied as an asset if it is virtually certain that the reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in notes in case of a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a present obligation arising from past events, when no
reliable estimate is possible . Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements where an inflow of economic benefits
are probable.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial Assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on
the classification of the financial assets

The company does not carry any debt instruments and equity instruments.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition, as financial liabilities as fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial
liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

Loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised costs using Effective Interest Rate method.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) are subsequently measured at fair value.

Financial guarantee contracts are subsequently measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per
impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
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Impairment of financial assets (Expected Credit Loss Model)

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at
amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or
other financial asset and financial guarantees not designated at FVTPL

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.
Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the
contract/agreement and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e.. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the
original effective interest rate. The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument, through the expected life of the financial instrument

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the life-time expected credit
losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increase significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not
increased significantly, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-
month expected credit losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the life-time cash shortfalls that
will result if the default occurs within 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalis that are predicted
over the next 12 months.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument instead of a
change in the amount of the expected credit loss. To achieve that, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases
in credit risk since initial recognition.

Insurance claims

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be admitted and to the extent that the
amount recoverable can be measured reliably and it is reasonable to expect ultimate collection.

Claims

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts are disclosed under contingent liabilities. Claims made by the
company are recognised as and when the same is approved by the respective authorities with whom the claim is lodged.

Commitments

Commitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure. Commitments are classified and disclosed as follows:
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for

Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid

Funding related commitment to subsidiary, associate and joint venture companies and

Other non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the extent they are considered material and relevant in the opinion of
management.

Other commitments related to sales/procurements made in the normal course of business are not disclosed to avoid
excessive details.

Employee Benefit

Employee benefits include provident fund, superannuation fund, employee state insurance scheme, gratuity fund,
compensated absences, long service awards and post-employment medical benefits.

i. Short term Employee Benefit
All employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term employee

benefits. The benefits like salaries, wages, short term compensated absences etc. and the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia
are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by
employees are recognised during the year when the employees render the service. These benefits include performance
incentive and compensated absences which are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which
the employee renders the related service.

The cost of short-term compensated absences is accounted as under :

(a) in case of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that increase their entitlement of
future compensated absences; and

(b) in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur.

ii. Post employment benefits
(a) Defined contribution plans:
The Company's superannuation scheme and State governed provident fund linked with employee pension scheme are defined

contribution plans. The contribution paid/ payable under the scheme is recognised during the period in which the employee
renders the related service.

(b) Defined benefit plans:

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plans is determined based on actuarial valuation using the
Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit
entitltement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.The obligation is measured at the present value
of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rate used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined
benefit plans, is based on the market yield on government securities.

{c ) Other long term Employee Benefit

The obligation for other long term employee benefits such as long term compensated absences, liability on account of

Retention Pay Scheme are recognised in the same manner as in the case of defined benefit plans as mentioned in (ii)(b)
above.
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Ranchi Expressway Limited

Notes to financial statements for the Year ended 31st March 2021

Investment Property

Particulars

As at
Mar 31, 2021

As at Mar 31, 2020

Immovable Property-Land

Total

Other Non Current Financial Asset

Particulars

As at Mar 31, 2021

As at Mar 31, 2020

Recivable From NHAI

Total

Other Non Current Assets

Particulars

As at Mar 31, 2021

As at Mar 31, 2020

Unsecured, considered good
Capital Advances

Mobilization and Material Advance-Ultimate holding company
Security Deposits

Total - -
Current Investment

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2021 As at Mar 31, 2020
Immovable Property-Land 2,010,000 2,010,000
Total 2,010,000 2,010,000
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2021 As at Mar 31, 2020
Balances with Banks
-In Current Accounts 3,906,485 3,906,667
Cash on hand :-

Cash on hand 138 138

Mutual Funds
Total 3,906,623 3,906,805
Other Financial Asset

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2021

As at Mar 31, 2020

Retention money receivable -NHAI
Receivable from NHAI
Claims Recivable From NHAI

15,113,464
426,819,267
12,962,714,344

15,113,464
426,819,267
12,958,801,826

Total 13,404,647,075 13,400,734,557
10 Current Tax Asset (Net)
Particulars As at Mar 31, 2021 As at Mar 31, 2020
Current tax Asset
Statutory dues receivables 28,252,353 28,252,353
Current tax liabilities
Income tax payable
Total 28,252,353 28,252,353
11 Other Current Assets
Particulars As at Mar 31, 2021 As at Mar 31, 2020
Advances to Related Parties
Madhucon Projects Limited- Ultimate Holding company 244,072,624 244 322,624
Madhucon Infra Limited- Holding company of holding company -
Chhapra Hajipur Expressways Ltd - Fellow subsidiary of holding company 2,000,000 2,000,000
Advances to Others 82,621 82,621
Prepaid expenses
Unsecured, considered good
Capital Advances
Mobilization and Material Advance-Ultimate holding company 201,919,046 201,919,046
| Segowrity Deposits 2,000 2,000
/| Fotal 448,076,291 448,326,291
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Notes to financial statements for the Year ended 31st March 2021
Equity Share Capital
Particulars g Asat
Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020
Note: 1 SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHORISED:
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
1SSUED, SBSCRIBED & PAID UP:
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up. 808,000,000 808,000,000
Total 808,000,000 808,000,000

Foot Notes:

i. Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginnin

liquity Share

g and as on 31st March' 2021

. As at Mar 31, 2021 As at Mar 31, 2020
Particulars .
Number Amount in Rs. Number Amount in Rs.
Number of equity shares at the beginning of the Year 80,800,000 808,000,000 80,800,000 808,000,000
Equity shares issued during the year
Less : Shares bought back during the year
Number of equity shares at the end of the Year 80,800,000 808,000,000 80,800,000 808,000,000

ii Terms and rights attached to equity shares
The Company h

share. The company declares and pays divide

During the year ended 31 March 2021, no div
In the event of liquidation of the Company,
distribution of preferential amounts. The distr

Shares in respect of each class in the

as only one class of equity shares having a par valu

nds in Indian rupee

ol the sharcholders in the ensuing annual general meeting.

idend is declared by

the holders of equity share
ibution will be in proportion to the number of cquity s

company held by its holding company or its ultimate
aof the holding company or the ultimate holding company in aggregate

S.

1 of Rs.10/- per share. Each holder of equity share
The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors ave sub)

Board of Directors.(Previous Year - Nil)

holding company including shares hel

s will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company,
hares held by the Shareholders

is entitled to one vote per
ject o the approval

aller

Id by or by subsidiaries or associates

Name of Sharcholder

Relationship

As at
Mar 31, 2021

No. of Shares held

Relationship

As at 3]st !\/Iurcl-ln
2020
No. of Shares held

Madhucon Projects Limited

Ultimate Holding
Company

14,000

Ultimate Holding
Company

14,000

Madhucon Infra Limited

Holding Company of
holding company

16,000

Holding Company

ol holding company

16.000

Madhucon Toll Highways Limited

IHolding Company

80,750,000

Holding Company

80,750.000

iii. Details of shareholders holding more than 5|

Y, shares in the comp

any

Name of the Shareholder

As at Mar 31, 2021

As at 31st March 2020

No. of shares

13

No. of shares held % of Holding held % of Holding
Madhucon Toll Highways Limited 80,750,000 99.94 80,750,000 9994
Other Equity
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Surplus in profit and loss account (2,094,612,064) (2,094,612,054)
Equity Component of Unsecured Loan -
Total (2,094,612,054) {2.094.612,054}
As on 31.02.2021, an amount of Rs. 404.23 crores has been reclasified as long term borrowings
which is hitherto classified as other equity.
Consequential prior year groupings have been changed.
Movement in other equity:
[_ Other items of
X Reserves and Other
Equity Component Surplus Comprehensive Total
of Unsecured Loan Income (specify
|Retained Earnings

Salance at the beginning of the reporting period i.e. 01.04.2020 -2,094,612,054 2.094,612.054

Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors

Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period

-2,094,612,054

2,094,612.054

[Total Comprehensive Income for the year

Transfer to retained earnings

Addition/Deletion in Equity Component

Henl
1

L2\

Balance at the end of the reporting period L.e.

31.03.2021

-2,094,612,054

142,094,612,054 |

s,
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Particulars As at As at
Mar 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Surplus in profit and loss account (2,094,612,054) {2,094,518,232)
Equity Component of Unsecured Loan
Total (2,094,612,054) (2,094,518,232)
Previous Year:
Other items of
.- : Reserves and Other
Equity Component Surplus Comprehensive Total

‘of Unsecured Loan

Income (specify

Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period i.e. 01.04.2019

-2,094,518,232

-2,094,518,232

Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors

Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period

-2,094,518,232

-2,094,518,232

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

-93,822

-93,822

Transfer to retained earnings

Addition/Deletion in Equity Component

Balance at the end of the reporting period i.e. 31.03.2020

-2,094,612,054

-2,094,612,064

Long term Borrowings

Particulars

As at Mar 31, 2021

As at Mar 31, 2021

Term Loans
Secured
- [rom Banks
- from Financial Institution

9,046,073,252
1.260,460,301

9,046,073,252
1,260,460,301

Total of Secured Term Loans 10,306,533,553 10,306,533,553
Total of short term borrowings 10,306,533,553 10,306,533,563
15 Long-term borrowings
Particulars As at As at
Mar 31,2021 Mar 31, 2020

Term Loans
Un Secured

- from Banks , 5

- from Financial Institution - -

- [rom Related Parties 4,042 ,258,261 4,042,258,261

Total of Un Secured Term Loans 4,042 258,261 4,042 258,261
Total of Long term borrowings 4,042,258,261 4,042,258,261
As on 31.02.2021, an amount of Rs. 404.23 crores has been reclasified as long term borrowings
which is hitherto classified as other equity.

Consequential prior year groupings have been changed.

Terms of Repayment - Secured Loan

Indian Rupee Term Loans Consists of Loans borrowed from a consortium of 13 bankers & one financial institution as per common loan
agrement dated 31-10-2011. The entire outstanding debt as per common loan agrement was re-structured and the loan amount was
payable as per master amendement to common laon agreeement dated 28-03-2017.

Interest is not provided during the fiancial year due to the Term Loans became NPA

Terms of Security

The Company has executed loan documents and created security as per common loan agreement dated 31-10-2011 and amendment to
common loan agreement dated 28-03-2017

Terms of Repayment - Un Secured Loan from Related Parties

The unsecured loans are provieded by the promoters of the company as per common loan agreement with Senior Lenders by way of Sub-
ordinate loan such sub-Ordinate loans interest and principle repayment shall be made after final settlement date. The date on which all the
secured obligations have been discharged in full to the satisfaction of the lenders.




16 Other Financial Liabilities - Non Current

Particulars

As at As at
Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2021
Retention money- Madhucon Projects Limited- Ultimate Holding
Company
Total = =
Long Term Provisions
Particulars As at As at
_Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2021
Gratuity
lLeave Encashment
Total - S
Trade Payable
Particulars As at As at
M_ar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2021
Due to related parties
Utility Shifting Payable - Madhucon Projects Limited 48,149,648 48,149,648
Total 48,149,648 48,149,648
Other Financial liabilities - Current
Particulars As at As at
Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2021
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 357,486,506 357,486,506
Audit Fee payable 123,100 67,850
Retention money Payable 13,315 13,315
Payables to related party
Other payable
Madhucon Infra Limited- Holding company of holding compa 23,870,815 5,632,223
Trichy-Thanjavur Expressways Limited- 2,500,000 2,500,000
Other payables 151,726,186 151,597,435
Salary payable 347 576 347,576
Total 536,067,498 517,544,905
Short Term Provisions
Particulars As at As at
Ma_gil, 2021 Mar 31, 2021
Provision for Gratuity 48,796 48,796
Provision for Leave encashment 7,002 7,002
Total 55,798 55,798
Other Current liabilities
‘Particulars As at As at
Mar31,2021 |  Mar31, 2021
Statutory liabilities 240,439,641 255,299,897
Total 240,439,641 255,299,897




Ranchi Expressway Limited

Notes to financial statements for the Year ended 31st March 2021

22 Revenue From Operations

23

24

25

26

27

Particulars

For the year ended Mar 31,
2021

For the year ended Mar 31,
2020

Revenue from Operations
Construction revenue
Finance income

Total

* Service tax not applicable on toll Services.

Other Income
- For the year ended Mar 31, | For the year ended Mar 31,
Particulars 2021 2020
Interest Income :-
Interest on Income Tax Refund
Expenditure Written Back
Interest Income On Mutual Fund
[ Total
Construction cost
- For the year ended Mar 31, | For the year ended Mar 31,
Particulars 2021 2020
Construction cost
Total = -
Finance Cost
. For the year ended Mar 31, | For the year ended Mar 31,
Particulars 2021 2020
- Interest on term loan from banks
- Other Borrowing cost
- Finance income written off
Total = E
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
i For the year ended Mar 31, | For the year ended Mar 31,
Particulars 2024 ! 2020
Depreciation -
Total
Other Expenses
% For the year ended Mar 31, | For the year ended Mar 31,
Particulars 2021 2020
Rent
Rates & Taxes - 5,972
Tax Audit Fees 8,850

Transfer Pricing Audit Fees
Professional Fees

Office Maintenance
Payments to Auditor

Miscellaneous expenses

- As Statutory Auditor (including Service Tax)

Total
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Ranchi Expressway Limited

Notes to financial statements for the Year ended 31st March 2021

Financial Instruments

Disclosure of Financial Instruments by Category

Note As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Financial instruments by categories no. [FVTPL FVTOCI Amortized cost |FVTPL FVTOCI Amortized cost
Financial asset
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents 8 3,906,623 3,906,805
Other financial assets 9 13,404,647,075 13.400,734.557
Total Financial Asset 13,408,553,698 13,404,641,362
Financial liability
Term Loan from Banks 14 10,306,533,553 B 10,306,533,553
Other financial Liabilities - Non Current 16 -
Trade Payables 18 48,149,648 48,149,648
Other financial Liabilities - Current 19 536,067,498 517,544,905
Total Financial Liabilities 10,890,750,699 10,872,228,106

Default and breaches

The company has not provided Interest on term loan during this F.Y 2020-21
The company has defaulted in repayment of interest and instalments.

Fair value of Financial asset and liabilties at amortized cost

Note As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Particular no. |Carrying amount |Fair value Carrying amount |Fair value
Financial Assets
Trade receivables - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 8 3,906,623 3,906,623 3,906,805 3,906,805
Other bank balance - - - -
Other financial assets 9| 13.404,647.075 13,404,647,075 13,400,734,557 13,400,734,557
Total Financial Assets 13,408,553,698 13,408,553.698 13,404,641,362 13,404,641,362

Financial liability

Term Loan from Banks 14| 10,306,533.5563 10,306,533,5653 10,306,5633,553 10,306,533,553
Other financial Liabilities - Non Current 16 - - - -

Trade Payables 18 48,149,648 48,149,648 48,149,648 48,149,648
Other financial Liabilities 19 536,067,498 536,067,498 517,544,905 517,544,905
Total Financial Liabilities 10,890,750,699 | 10,890,750,699 10,872,228,106 10,872,228,106

The carrying amount of current financial assets and current trade and other payables measured at amortised cost are considered to be the same as their
fair values, due to their short term nature. However the amount of Rs 1296,14,16,023/- receivable from NHAI is not yet settled and is subject to final

ascertainment of the claimed amount due.

The carrying value of Rupee Term Loan approximate fair value as the instruments are at prevailing market rate.
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Ranchi Expressway Limited

Notes to financial statements for the Year ended 31st March 2021

Fair Value Measurement

Fair Value Measurement of Financial asset and Financial liabilties

Fair value hierarchy

Fair Value Measurement

Valuation technique and inputs used to determine fair value

Valuation

Financial assets and liabilities method |Inputs
Financial liabilities
Term Loan from Banks Income Effective rate of borrowing
Term Loan from related parties Income Effective rate of borrowing
Other Current Financial Liabilities Income Effective rate of borrowing
Asset pledged as security
Particulars Note no 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Non Financial Asset
Property, Plant & Equipment 3] - -
Investment Property 7 2,010,000 2,010,000
Financial Asset
Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 3,906,805 3,830,177
Other Bank Balances - -
Other Financial Assets 9| 13,400,734,557 | 13,392,882,496
Other Current Assets 11 448,326,291 451,826,332

TOTAL 13,854,977,653 | 13,850,549,005




Ranchi Expressway Limited

Notes to financial statements for the Year ended 31st March 2021

33 Financial Risk Management

A)

B)

C)

The company's activities expose it to variety of financial risks : market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The company's focus is to foresee
the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The Board of Directors
has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The Board of Directors has
established a risk management policy to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and
to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management systems are reviewed periodically to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company's activities. The Board of Directors oversee compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and
reviews the risk management framework.

Market risk

The market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices
Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.

Foreign Currency Risk

The company is not exposed to foreign currency risk as it has no borrowing or no material payables in foreign currency

Interest rate risk

The company has not provided interest from the date of Term Loan accounts became NPA.

Price risk
The company is not exposed to price risk as it has no investment.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial assets.

The company is exposed to liquidity risk due to bank borrowings and trade and other payables.

The company measures risk by forecasting cash flows.

The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when due without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The Company ensures that it has sufficient
fund to meet expected operational expenses, servicing of financial obligations

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities

As at March 31, 2021 Carrying Amoun| upto 1 year 1 -2 years 2-5years > § years
Non Derivative Financial Liability

Term Loan from Banks 9,046,073,252 9,046,073,252

Term Loan from Financial Institutions 1,260,460.301 1,260,460,301

Term Loan from related parties

Trade Payables 48,149,648 48,149,648

Derivative Financial Liability NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

As at March 31, 2020 Carrying Amoun| upto 1 year 1-2years 2 - § years > § years
Non Derivative Financial Liability

Term Loan from Banks 9.046,073,252 9,046,073,252

Term Loan from Financial Institutions 1,260,460,301 1.260.460,301

Term Loan from related parties

Trade Payables 48,149,648 48,149,648

Derivative Financial Liability NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Credit risk

The company generally does not have trade receivables as project is in construction phase. Hence, the management beljeves that the
company is not exposed to any credit risk. oy 2
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Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS 1 - "Presentation of Financial Statements"”

For the purpose of the company’'s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, Secured Loan and all other equity
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the company’s capital management is to maximise
shareholder value.

The Company does not have any transaction to which the provision of Ind As-2 relating to Valuation of Inventories applies.

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 11 - "Construction Contracts"

Amount of contract revenue recognised in the year : Nil

Method used to recognise the constructions revenue - Work excuted during the year and remaining to be executed.

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 12 - "Income taxes"

The Company does not have taxable income and hence provision for current tax has not been made. The company is eligible for
deduction under section 80IA of Income Tax Act and the tax holiday period of the company's project falls within the concession period
of the company as defined in Section 80IA. Since tax on Timing difference between Accounting Income and Taxable Income that

arise during the year is reversing during such tax holiday period. No deferred tax asset/ liability arises and accordingly no provision is
made in the accounts.

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits
Employee Benefits

During the financial year there were no employees worked hence this clause is not applicable

Related Party Transactions
A. List of Related Parties

Company Name Relation

Madhucon projects Limited Ultimate Holding Company

Madhucon Infra Limited Holding Company of holding company

Madhucon Toll Highways Limited Holding Company

Tiruchi Tanjavur Expressways Limited Fellow subsidiary company

| D[N

Chhapra Hajpur Expressways Limited Fellow subsidiary company

B. Transactions with related parties:

For the year ended 2020-21 For the year ended 2019-20
Transactions Amount Transactions Amount
during the year receivable/ during the year receivable/
(payable) (payable)
Madhucon Projects Limited — Ultimate Holding Company
EPC Cost (Construction contract expenses) 0 224,609,791 224,609,791
Utility Shifting Expense -48,149,648 -48,149,648
Mobilization, Material Advance 0 201,919,046 201,919,046
Unsecured Loan 0 -1,085,919,064 - -1,085,919,064
Retention money- EPC 0 0 -
Retention money- UT 0 0 -
Share Capital 0 -140000 - -140,000
Performance bank guarantee given to NHA! on behalf
of the company 0 0 )
Expenses paid on our behalf 250,000 1,038,500
Expenses paid on their behalf 0 19,462,833 94,886 1972 Eed
Amount paid
Madhucon Infra limited - Holding Company of holding company
Share Capital 0 -160,000 -160,000
Unsecured Loan 0 -2,666,815,953 -2,666,815,953
Expenses paid on our behalf 23,246,940 8,053,421
Advance paid 11,250 23870815 5,532,223
Madhucon Toll Highways Limited - Holding
Company
Share Capital - -807,500,000 E -807,500,000
Unsecured Loan - -289,623,244 - -289,523,244
Madhucon Toll Highways Limited has pledged 3,61,08,000 number of equity shares held by them in the company to the
lenders under common loan agreement.
Trichy Tanjavur Expressways Ltd. — Fellow subsidiary of holding company
Other transactions = [ -2500000 | = | -2,500,000
Chhapra Hajipur Expressways Limited - Fellow subsidiary of holding company ZA08 AN
Expenses paid on their behalf reimbursed | = [ 2000000 | 2 | /2,000,000 |

_ -
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Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 23 "Borrowing Costs"

Borrowing cost capitalised during the year * Nil. (previous year :* Nil).

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 33 "Earnings per share™

Basic and Diluted Earnings per share (EPS) computed in accordance with Ind AS 33 “Earnings per share”.

3 . As at As at
Rarcadrs ut March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020

Earnings Per Equity Share:

Net Profit after tax Rupees - (93,822)
Equity Shares outstanding Numbers 80,800,000 80,800,000
Nominal Value of Equity Share Rupees 10 10
Basic Earnings per Share Rupees B ) (0.00)
Diluted Earnings per Share Rupees - (0.00)
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Disclosures as per Ind AS 37 - "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent assets "

(i) Contingent Liability: EPC Contractor has raised a claim on the company and the same will be setiled after receiving claim amount
from NHAI.

(i) Commitments : Capital Commitment (Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed ~EPC) :
Nil (PY Rs.4,16,33,65,255/-)

Payments to Auditor (Including Service Tax)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Rupees

(a) Statutory Audit Fee 59,000 59,000
(b) Other Services (Opinion / Certification Fees) 0
(c) Tax Audit Fee 8,850
(d) Income Tax_Filings E

Total 59,000 67,850
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There have been no claimed transactions during the year with Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises covered under the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act 2006
Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 36 "Impairment of Assets"

Based on review of future discounted cash flows and other factors including termination of contract with NHAI, so claim from NHAI
may be subject to impairment, the recoverable amount of the project facility is more than its carrying amount. Accordingly no provision

for impairment of assets is provided.
Disclosure of segment information pursuant to Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments”

The Company was engaged in the business of construction, operation and maintenance of Toll road projects on a Build Operate
Transfer basis in a single business segment. Hence reporting of operating segments does not arise. The Company does not have
operations outside India. Hence, disclosure of geographical segment information does not arise.

In the opinion of the Board, the current assets, loans & advances, have a value on realization in the ordinary course of business at
least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet.

There were no litigation pending against the company which could be materially impact its financial position as at the end of the year.

Previous year figures have been re-grouped, re-worked and re-classified wherever necessary, to make them comparable with current
year figures

For Ghoshal & Ghosal For and on behalf of Board

Chartered Accountants of Ranchi Expressways Limited

Firm's Registration No. 304013E
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